CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board** held on Wednesday, 22nd November, 2023 in the Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

Board Members

Helen Charlesworth-May, Executive Director Adults, Health, and Integration Councillor Janet Clowes, Cheshire East Council Councillor Sam Corcoran (Chair), Cheshire East Council Councillor Carol Bulman, Cheshire East Council Councillor Jill Rhodes, Cheshire East Council Mark Groves, Healthwatch Cheshire Inspector Duncan Gouck, Cheshire Police Dr Matt Tyrer, Director of Public Health Kathryn Sullivan, CVS Cheshire East Mark Wilkinson, Cheshire East Place Director Deborah Woodcock, Executive Director of Children's Services

Cheshire East Officers and Others

Gill Betton, Head of Service, Children's Development and Partnerships Dan McCabe, Head of Integrated Urgent and Emergency Care Sara Deakin, Head of Health Intelligence Keith Evans, Head of Service: Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Mark Hughes, Senior Commissioning Manager Guy Kilminster, Corporate Manager Health Improvement Dr Susie Roberts, Public Health Consultant Karen Shuker, Democratic Services Officer Jo Williams, NHS Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care Board (ICB) (joined remotely via Microsoft Teams)

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Dr Paul Bishop, Michelle Davis, Superintendent Claire Jesson, Peter Skates, Claire Williamson, Isla Wilson and Charlotte Wright.

Inspector Duncan Gouck and Mark Groves attended as substitutes.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2023 be confirmed as a correct record.

4 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public present.

5 NOTIFICATION OF PHARMACY CLOSURE

The Board received a report which provided notification from NHS England of the closure of the Pharmacy in Buglawton and outlined the impact on the residents of Congleton East and Congleton & Holmes Chapel (CHOC) Care Community, and the other pharmaceutical providers who served this area.

Assurance was given that there was no further action required for the statutory responsibility of the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board to be discharged

A gap analysis had been undertaken by the Public Health Intelligence team to understand the impact on residents and customers and other pharmaceutical providers in the area. It was found that there was adequate pharmaceutical provision within the Care Community and the surrounding area which would be able to absorb the additional dispensing workload that would be created by the closure.

The Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) for 2022 – 2025 concluded that the pharmacy services were adequate for the lifetime of that PNA within that area and included looking at an aging population, future population growth and housing developments.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

6 CHESHIRE EAST LEARNING DISABILITY PLAN AND ALL AGE MENTAL HEALTH PLAN

The Board considered a report which sought endorsement from the Health and Wellbeing Board of the Cheshire East Place Plans for Learning Disabilities and Mental Health. The Plans had already been approved at the Children and Families Committee and the Adults and Health Committee.

Both plans had an all-age approach, had been co-produced and were available in easy read versions. Monitoring of the plans would take place

through the Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Boards with an annual report presented to the Adults and Health Committee and the Children and Families Committee.

Board members welcomed the plans but agreed that they were strategies that should be looked at holistically and not stand alone.

Officers agreed to take away a query raised about whether dentistry was included within the NHS health-checks. It was reported that NHS England had previously commissioned this but there was a piece of work being undertaken separately on how this would be brought in to the ICB.

RESOLVED: (Unanimously)

That the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board endorse:

- 1. The Cheshire East Place Learning Disabilities Plan.
- 2. The Cheshire East Place Mental Health Plan.

7 CHESHIRE EAST WINTER PLAN 2023-24

The Board received an update on winter planning for 2023/2024. The overall purpose of the Winter plan was to ensure that the system was able to effectively manage the capacity and demand pressures anticipated during the Winter period October 2023 to 31 March 2024. System plans ensured that local systems were able to manage demand surge effectively and ensure people remained safe and well during the Winter months. The planning process considered the impact and learning from last Winter, as well as learning from the system response to Flu and Covid-19 to date.

Oversight and monitoring had commenced to measure the effectiveness or any emerging or associated risks such as system workforce challenges and the increase in the level of need and complexity of individuals which was now much greater in terms of their level of needs, care and support.

Funding so far had been invested on schemes around prevention, facilitated discharge, additional workforce loads such as social work and approved mental health practitioners.

Set metrics were in place for rigorous monitoring of the plan which included accident and emergency attendance and admissions, daily discharge, length of stay, care at home capacity and mental health act assessments.

Following comments and questions from Board members, officers reported that:

- There had been an uptake of 60.2% of all those eligible for the covid winter booster in Cheshire East.

- The most up to date figures for flu vaccinations hadn't been released yet.
 To attract staff in having vaccinations there had been onsite clinics and programmes run with pharmacies, details of which had been shared with staff.
- Levels are influenza were low although there had been an increase. The number of covid cases had increased recently although those had begun to come down again.
- There was a clear message that there was not going to be any additional funds to support capacity within the NHS for the winter period.

RESOLVED:

That the update be noted.

8 SEND STRATEGY

This item was taken after item 9 - SEND SEF.

The Board received a report which set out the details of the refreshed Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) partnership strategy and priority areas for the next 12 months aligned to the outcomes of the Delivering Better Value (DBV) programme.

Due to the current financial position the high needs spend was an area for development and the refreshed strategy enabled areas of activity to be identified in order to mitigate spend.

It was expected that the strategy would be re-written next year which would include the mitigations and activities coming out of the Safety Valve programme of work which was the next tier of intervention by the Department for Education (DfE).

A plan of the detailed work which would sit under the Safety Valve programme would be a feature of the 2024 activity to re-write the strategy and the detail of the programme of work would be set out in a refreshed governance structure. The Health and Wellbeing Board would be sighted on this along with the SEND partnership activity which would also be brought to the Board on a regular basis.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

9 SEND SEF

The Board received a presentation on the SEND Self Evaluation Form (SEF) which was used as a tool for the partnership to know itself well and

to identify areas for development. The SEF would then feed in to the SEND Strategy. The presentation outlined the following:

- The purpose of the SEF
- The development of Cheshire East's SEF
- The strengths and areas of development for Cheshire East
- The next steps

Board members asked that there was consistency with the information provided for the different boards and partnerships within the Council so that there was a similar approach as there appeared to be a perceived discrepancy within some areas.

In response to concerns raised in respect of the disparity of provision such as waiting lists and inconsistency in the different processes across the borough, officers reported that this was an area of great scrutiny with partners and a report will be brought to the Health and Wellbeing Board for consideration.

RESOLVED:

That the presentation be noted.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.40 pm

Councillor S Corcoran (Chair)